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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (iI known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This nondescript two story red brick structure located at 
390 Beale Street was built in the early 1900 T s. It is a very simple 
rectangular building with a bracketed trim across the front. Two 
sets of "double windows are located in the second floor with larger 
windows of no particular design on the ground floor. The brick 
work has no visible bond but it is in good condition. There have 
been minor alterations made on the lower level with door and window 
enlargements. The interior of the building has been altered from 
time to time to adapt to various offices and has no particular 
architectural value.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This building located at 390 Beale was built in the .early 
190CP_s and was located in what was the business district of 
Beale Street. It supposedly housed a drugstore first and later 
otheF businesses. The significance of this structure, however, 
lies in the fact that the late W. C. HandyrTiad his" publishing " 
hojuse Jhiere. When all the New York publishers,-had turned down 
his music, tyChe Memphis Blues," "The Beale St/reet Blues," 
"The St. Loiiis Blues," Handy decided to organize his own pub­ 
lishing company. He formed a partnership with—the..JLate Harry 
Pace who was at that time the cashier of the Solvent Bank. 
Luckily, Handy was able to get substantial financial aid from 
Pace to establish his publishing house at 390 Beale. Handy T s 
publishing house was in the center of the kind of emotional 
environment he needed for fathering the unconscious creations 
of the Negro^folk; and Handy might have remained there "throughout 
his long andcoTorful career if the boys in his band had not been 
so anxious to get back to Beale Street for a spending spree 
after a successful concert in Atlanta. The boys T pockets were 
bulging with money and they wanted to cancel their engagement 
at the University of North Carolina to get back to Beale Street. 
Handy was stubborn about it and wanted to fill the engagement. 
When the boys in his band refused, he broke up the band and 
moved his publishing house to New York.

This structure was located next door to the Solvent Savings 
Bank and Trust Company, the first Negro bank in the state. 
R. R. Church, Sr., founder of Church Park and Auditorium on 
Beale, and a Negro millionaire, founded this bank in 1906.

The structure at 390 Beale is the only such remaining 
business building in the area and has been spared in the urban 
renewal area because of its historic significance. The plans 
for the area include leaving this building with hopes that a 
museum can be developed there to interpret Handy and his music 
to the visitor on Beale Street.
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On February 11, 1971, the Trl-State Bank at 390 Beale Street, Memphis, was placed on 
the National Register. Due to numbering changes, the building was later designated 
as 386 Beale Street, and this fact was reported to the National Register on August 21, 
1973.

It was stated in the nomination that this building was the location of the publishing 
house of W. C. Handy, and that it was located next door to the Solvent Savings Bank 
and Trust Company, the first Negro bank in the state. This information was provided 
by prominent local citizens who were long associated with the Beale Street area.

Over a period of time it has been discovered that this information contained errors, 
including the fact that this building was not the one in which Handy had his publish­ 
ing house, which actually was in a building which stood at 392 Beale Street and no 
longer is standing. Also, the Solvent Savings Bank and Trust Company, while being a 
very early bank, was not the first Negro bank established in the state. Among the 
sources substantiating the first statement is an article in the August 1983 issue of 
Memphis Magazine about Wyer Handy, son of W, C. Handy, which refers to the former 
Pace and Handy firm at 392 Beale Street.

The building which housed the Solvent Savings Bank, founded in 1906 by Robert R. 
Church, Sr., was demolished many years ago. Its address was 390-392 Beale Street. 
Handy's studio was on the second floor. The Church family operated the bank until the 
early 1920s. It subsequently merged with another institution and became the Fraternal 
and Solvent Savings Bank and Trust Company, with which the Church family had no 
connection. This bank closed around the end of December in 1927.

In October 1946, the Tri-State Bank, recently organized by A, Maceo Walker and 
Dr. J. E. Walker, purchased the building at 386 Beale Street. The building had been 
constructed in the early part of this century. The bank has grown to be the second 
largest black financial institution in Tennessee.

The Tri-State Bank Building has played an important role in the political strategy of 
blacks, much of which was planned in this building from 1946 until 1965. The cam­ 
paigns of many black candidates were planned in the building. Also, in the 1960s 
many of the civil rights marches and demonstrations began here.

A fire damaged the vacant building several months ago. Plans are under way to reno­ 
vate the building for offices and to continue its use as an important structure in the 
activities of the black community on Beale Street.


